ROOTS

Recently, Bill Summersgill and his wife Midge, from Vancouver in British Columbia visited the area in search of their roots.  Bill's grandfather, William McDonald was the younger brother of John McDonald, who older members of the community will remember as vanman to Gordon the grocer in the village.  As a young man, John lost his right arm in a threshing mill accident.  Their father Donald McDonald was born in Croy, Invernesshire, around 1838 and as a young man travelled to Aberdeen in search of work.  He was staying at 25 Gaelic Lane in Woodside when he married Ann Brown, a Kemnay lass, on 19th June 1865.  Donald soon moved to Kemnay and obtained a lease of ground on Parkhill where he built a house overlooking the farm of Wellbush and with views to the Hill of Fare and Learney.  This was a small thatched cottage, but here the couple reared their family of four daughters and three sons, Donald earning his living as a labourer at the nearby quarries.
Their eldest daughter, Jane Farney McDonald, named after her maternal grandmother, married George Christie who for a time had a bicycle shop in the wood beside the present bowling green.  At that time there was no wall around the bowling green and there was a ditch which ran parallel to the road, access being gained to the shoppie by a bridge of railway sleepers.  The Christies stayed in the east end of what is now Kirkstyle Cottage. 

The youngest daughter, Helen, married Charles Milne, son of a former policeman at Kemnay at the Trades Hall in Belmont Street in Aberdeen on 2nd March 1900.  Sadly Helen died at Garden Cottage, Leith Hall Kennethmont on 28th September 1916 and on 10th February 1934; Charles married Helen's sister Margaret, by this time a widow and working as a housekeeper at The Knowe, Kemnay. Margaret died on 25th July 1936 and Charles died at Kintore on 14th June 1949.
George, the eldest son, served in the police force at Thornhill, near Dumfries and William, the youngest son also joined the police force in that area before emigrating to Canada around 1906 where Bill Summersgill was eventually born.

John McDonald took over the house following the death of his mother in 1910 and when he renewed the lease in 1922 the estate gave him materials to renovate the property on condition that he supplied the labour to carry out the work.  The loss of his arm did not hold John back too much – it was said that the only thing he was unable to do was fasten the cuff button of his shirt sleeve – and John looked after the area round his cottage as well as his work in the village until his death in 1952.  His wife Mary Ann Robertson died in Morningfield Hospital, Aberdeen on 22nd July 1961.

The house was sold to a young couple, Sid and Mona Aldridge[?] who stayed only a short time. Mr and Mrs P Sinclair Brown, from Aberdeen, then obtained the house and carried out extensive renovations to the property.  A completely new house has been erected on the site in 2006.  
